MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AUGUST 11, 2020
MINUTES

Chairman Tate called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. and welcomed those in
attendance. Due to Gov. Roy Cooper’s Executive Order limiting the number of
people at a mass gathering to 10 due to COVID-19, physical participation at the
meeting in the boardroom was limited to that number. All five commissioners
were physically present and practiced social distancing. County Manager Derek
Roland was also present, as was Finance Director Lori Carpenter and County
Attorney Chester Jones. Deputy Clerk Mike Decker watched the meeting via live
stream. A reduced number of members of the media were allowed to attend.

ANNOUNCEMENTS: There were no announcements.

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Chairman Tate asked those in attendance to observe a
moment of silence.

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG: Led by Mr. Roland, the pledge to the flag was recited.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Robert Cook spoke in support for an increase in
pay for members of the Macon County Sheriff’s Department. Mr. Cook said he
was a retired law enforcement officer, and described the sheriff’s department as
a “top-notch, professional organization.” He said the department is down 11
deputies, and with an average base salary of about $39,000, he cited the low pay
as the reason so many officers move. He said older members of the staff leave for
better pay and benefits, leaving a younger force. He told the commissioners that
if you want the best and brightest, you need to pay, and asked the board to
please consider raising their pay. Debbie Westerman asked if any progress had
been made regarding the situation in Teem Hollow that she spoke about in the
public comment period at the July board meeting. Mr. Jones said she left the
meeting without him obtaining her contact information, and once he has that,
he would set up an appointment with her. Hilda Jones told the board that she
and her husband are the closest neighbors to the property in question on Teem
Hollow. She said they moved here about eight and half years ago. She said the
neighbors have moved in six “bashed up” campers in the last four years. She
said the property has no weeds, no grass and trash everywhere. She said there
is a stench coming from the property in the summer, and she and her husband

Minutes
08.11.20
Page 1 of 7



can’t do yardwork because of it. She said they also burn rubber on the property
and that she and her husband “gag in our house due to the smell.” She said
there is a lot of traffic going to and from this property, usually a car every 15 to
30 minutes, adding that the visitors stay less than five minutes. In addition, she
said there is a woman who lives on the property who screams and yells all the
time and goes around with only a thong on. She told the board that we feel like
prisoners in our home, adding that the neighbors have no electricity and no
water, and “stole our electricity off the front porch.” She described the situation
as embarrassing and told the board, “We don’t know what to do about this.” In
closing, she said her adult children will not bring their children to her house due
to the circumstances. When she finished speaking, Mr. Jones asked her to sign
his contact list. Heath Higdon said he was at the meeting to represent Betty
Norris, who he said lives on the “other side” from Mrs, Jones. He said Mrs. Norris
is 75 and a widow who comes to her property her four or five times a year.
However, he said she is now afraid to come here, and he added that “nobody
wants to live next door to a meth lab.” He told the board Mrs. Norris is paying
taxes on something she can’t use. He said the adjoining property has at least
seven vehicles that don’t run, septic has been seen running across the road, and
there have been one or two explosions. “It’s ruined people’s property values,” he
said, and told the board that the neighboring homes are “useless” and
“worthless” due to the circumstances. He also signed Mr. Jones’ contact list.
Anita Lewis told the board she has lived in the Teem Hollow area all her life,
and while it used to be beautiful, she would not invite anyone up there. She said
the residents on the property in question dump sewer in the branch and burn
tires and mattresses. She said the property should be condemned, and told the
board something has to be done. In regard to the woman who goes around on
the property partially dressed, Ms. Lewis said, “I hope the lady doesn’t get run
over,” adding that “somebody’s gonna get her.” Chairman Tate told her that the
board has “a good gist” of the situation. Ms. Lewis began speaking directly to Mr.
Jones, and Sheriff Robert Holland told the board that “everything you are
hearing is accurate,” saying he and his officers have been to the property lots of
times and have arrested lots of people. Following several different conversations
throughout the boardroom, John McCall spoke next. He told the board he does
not live in the Teem Hollow area, but has seen the property and spoke to sewage
running across the road and to rotting bags of trash. “I concur with everything
these people have said,” he told the board members, and offered to “load” them
up in his truck and take them to the property. He also signed Mr. Jones’ contact
list. Tracy Rowland also spoke in regard to Teem Hollow, and told the board,
“It’s sad what has happened,” adding that she has called the health department
about the situation, which she described as “ridiculous.” She signed Mr. Jones’
contact list. Elaine Marshall told the board she lives on Ellijay Road on property
that backs up to Teem Hollow. She spoke about sewage from a creek going into
her yard, and added, “It’s awful,” and told the board members we are not
exaggerating. She said the garbage and the vermin are bad and asked the board,

Minutes
08.11.20
Page 2 of 7




















